1926 – 1991

On 1 March 1926, the 24-year-old Richard Bacht acquired a small printing company that had done business since 1913 on approximately 100 square metres at Mühlheimer Straße 17 in Essen-Frohnhausen. The initially fairly small outfit expanded rapidly, growing into a solidly founded enterprise by 1932, in spite of the downturn of the world economy of the late 1920s. Apart from the young founder’s verve and commitment, this was possible due to several permanent assignments. Especially important was the development of the Wochenblatt, formerly an advertising weekly published privately by a circle of local businessmen, into a commercial newspaper with 24.000 readers. 

The year 1933 brought the first setbacks. The company lost some of its permanent assignments, including the now illegal magazines by three Christian trade unions. The outbreak of the war in 1939 led to a considerable loss of revenue because many clients had to withdraw their advertisements from the Wochenzeitung. Soon, the entire advertisement business built up in the 1920s was a thing of the past.

On 2 June 1942, the buildings and machines were largely destroyed in an air raid by the Allied Forces. The production of printed matter on the site had to be discontinued. At once, however, Richard Bacht had his company rebuilt – a feat that was accomplished by July 1943. Even the machines had been replaced by then. Nonetheless, the pre-war level of production could not be restored because most employees had meanwhile been drafted for active Wehrmacht service. Richard Bacht therefore rented his company out to Alfred Krupp‘s reprographic department which had also been bombed out in 1942.

In 1944 and during the final air raid on Essen on 11 March 1945, the company was razed to the ground again. Upon their release from the Wehrmacht or prisoner-of-war camps, the surviving employees were re-hired and spent three years, until September 1948, clearing away the rubble and rebuilding the company from scratch. First production runs were possible in 1947 with a cohort of 10 employees on a surface of approximately 150 m². In order to render this quick recovery possible, Richard Bacht had his own metal workshop built up, for outsourcing of the machine repairs was not an option in the immediate aftermath of the war.

In 1948-1949, the construction of a new, much larger building was undertaken. Steady expansion ensued. In 1958, a new department was founded – the company was now able to do its own lead typesetting. The year after, in 1959, a non-fiction publication department, specialising mainly in volumes on architecture, was set up in order to keep idle time of the machines and the large work force at a minimum. In 1964, a modern flat-roofed annex with underground parking and a powered loading bay was erected to house the ever larger four-colour printing machines. In 1966, when the Graphische Betriebe und Verlag Richard Bacht GmbH celebrated fourty years of existence under its founding manager, the workforce had grown to its all-time peak of 120.

With hindsight, this difficult, varied history centred around a repeatedly destroyed and reconstructed set of industrial buildings serves as an apposite example of the catastrophe of World War II. But Richard Bacht’s pragmatic wisdom enabled him to refrain from any kind of complaint about the contingent injustice done to him. His prime achievement – the continual reconstruction of his company against all odds, and thereby the securing of the livelihood of his workforce – was the source of the pride that could be felt by anyone who accompanied the late Richard Bacht on his daily inspection runs.

